
Town of Montreat  
Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – Public Forum 

 March 2, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 
Walkup Building 

 
 

1 

I. Call to Order 

• Welcome 
• Moment of Silence

II. Agenda Adoption 

III. Public Comments 

IV. Adjournment 
 

Packet Page 1



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Meeting 
March 2, 2017 – 7:00 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 
 

1 

I. Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Moment of Silence

II. Agenda Adoption   

III. Mayor’s Communications 
 

IV. Consent Agenda 

A.  Meeting Minutes Adoption 

• January 26, 2017, Special Workshop – Florida Terrace Property Minutes 
• February 2, 2017, Public Forum Meeting Minutes 
• February 2, 2017, Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

 
B. 2017 Board of Commissioners Annual Meeting Calendar Adoption 

 
C. Cancellation of Agenda Meeting for the month of April and reschedule Regular 

meeting for April 6th. 
 
D. Corporate Authorization Resolutions #16-03-0001 through #16-03-0007 amending 

the Town of Montreat’s list of authorized signers with Asheville Savings Bank. 
 
E. Corporate Authorization Resolutions #16-03-0008 through #16-03-0009 amending 

the Town of Montreat’s list of authorized signers with BB&T. – Materials Pending 
 
F. Approval of Engagement Contract from Martin Starnes & Associates for a 5 year 

term. 
 

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the 
adoption of the agenda and without discussion.  If a member of the governing body requests 
discussion of an item, it will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.
 
V. Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Consent Agenda Review 
• Other Topics 
• Town Hall Update 

 
VI. Administrative Reports 

Packet Page 2



    Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting 

   March 2, 2017 
 
 

2 

• Police Chief -  Materials Pending 
• Public Works Director 
• Finance Officer 
• Building Inspector/Code Administrator – Materials Pending  

VII. Public Comment – Agenda Items 

Public comments will be heard during this period for only those items listed on the meeting 
agenda
 

.   

VIII. Old Business 

 
IX. New Business 

A. Oath of Office – Alex Carmichael, Town Administrator 
 

B.  Purchase of 2017 Ford Explorer Police Vehicle 
• Suggested Motion:  To approve the purchase of a 2017 Ford Explorer from 

Asheville Ford in the amount of $34,087. 
 

C.   Budget Amendment  # 3 
• Suggested Motion:  To amend the Police Budget to fund a vehicle purchase 

through the reallocation from the Streets capital expense budget. 
 

D. Scheduling of 2017 Annual Board Retreat 
 

E. Surplus Property List 
 
F. Discussion on Metal Building for Public Works 
 
G. Texas Road Bridge 

• Suggested Motion:  To leave Texas Road Bridge in place and convert to 
pedestrian only; and to authorize the Mayor and Town Administrator to sign 
accompanying categorical exclusion document and letter to NCDOT. – Materials 
Pending 
 

H. Discussion with Possible Action of Rezoning of Florida Terrace Property to Residential 
Use Only – Materials Pending 

 
I. Town of Montreat as an Inclusive Community 

Packet Page 3



    Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting 

   March 2, 2017 
 
 

3 

• Suggested Motion:  To move to add the phrase “to be an inclusive community” 
to the Town of Montreat Board of Commissioners Mission Statement. 

• Item 1:  “To seek ways to be an inclusive community, to maintain and improve 
the quality of life, preserve the natural beauty and promote responsible growth 
while maintaining our community image, heritage and traditions.” 

 
  

X.  Public Comment – Other Topics 

Public comments will be heard during this period for other public business items or topics not 
listed on the meeting agenda

XI. Commissioner Communications 

.  

XII. Meeting Dates 
  
 

March 14, 2017, 9:30 a.m. Montreat Tree Board: 
Town Services Building 

April 5, 2017, 9:00 a.m. Montreat Landcare: 
Allen Building 

Swannanoa Room 
 

April 6, 2017, 7:00 p.m. April Town Council  Meeting: 
Walkup Building 

Public Forum starts at 6:30 p.m. 
 

April 14, 2017 Town Offices Closed: 
In observance of Good Friday Holiday 

 
April 29, 2017, 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Native Plant Sale & Arbor Day Celebration: 

Moore Center Field 
 

XIII. Closed Session 
• Suggested Motion:  To enter into Closed Session in accordance with NCGS 

§143-318.11(6) for discussion of a personnel matter and also NCGS §143-
318.11(5) to instruct the Town’s staff concerning the position to be taken 
on behalf of the Town in negotiating the price and other material terms of a 
contract for acquisition of an interest in real property. 
 

XIV. Adjournment 
 

Packet Page 4



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Special Workshop – Florida Terrace Property 
January 26, 2017 

Town Services Building 
 

Book 16; Page 

 
Board members present

Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 
: Mayor Tim Helms 

Commissioner Bill Gilliland 
Commissioner Kent Otto 
Commissioner Mary Standaert 
Commissioner Ann Vinson 
 

Board members absent:
 

 None     

Town staff present
Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 

:  Al Richardson, Interim Town Administrator 

 
Approximately 2 members of the public were also present.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to 
order at 3:02 p.m., led the group in a moment of silence.  Mayor Helms stated that the purpose of 
the meeting was to discuss the Florida Terrace tract of property which the Town owns. 
   

 
Agenda Approval 

Commissioner Standaert requested that a Public Comment period be added to the agenda.  It was 
decided that the Public Comment period would come before the Council began their discussion.  
Commissioner Vinson moved to adopt the agenda as amended.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded 
and the motion carried 5/0. 

 
Public Comment 

Martha Campbell of 149 Maryland Place, reflected on the need in the Swannanoa Valley for 
affordable housing and she referenced a recent article in the Black Mountain News in which a 
homeless lady and her niece were being provided a tiny house in which to reside.  Mrs. Campbell 
could see the property on Florida Terrace being used for tiny houses or a building that could be 
split into a duplex or a triplex.  It could be suitable housing for employees of the Town, Montreat 
College or MRA or for young people just starting out their lives.  Mrs. Campbell would like to see 
the Town encourage builders or contractors to use the property for affordable housing 
development. 
 
Grace Nichols of 527 Suwannee Drive, stated that she was in attendance to listen and support the 
Council.   

 
 
 
 
 

Packet Page 5



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Special Workshop Minutes 

January 26, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
Town Council Discussion 

Mayor Helms prefaced the meeting by saying that the first step, in his opinion, was to decide 
whether the Council wanted to sell the property, keep the property or donate the property.  He 
stated there were many options that could be reviewed.  Commissioner Gilliland stated that he 
would like to see the property rezoned to residential usage and split into two lots and sell the 
properties to recoup some of the money spent in the purchase of the property. Commissioner 
Vinson suggested placing the property in conservation due to the fact there was some good 
wildlife on the property or using it as a pocket park for the Town.  Commissioner Vinson also 
suggested selling one lot and then swapping property with MRA for a piece of property at Lookout 
Trailhead to put that tract of property in conservation.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche felt that selling the 
property would be the best option so that the Town could use that income to pay for the new 
town hall.  She would also like to see it rezoned to residential if possible.  Commissioner Otto 
would like to see the property sold residentially to get it back on the tax rolls of the Town.  
Commissioner Standaert stated that there was a previous tradition that the Town would not spend 
any money to purchase property for conservation purposes.  There was, however, money available 
for the legal issues dealing with conservation.    Commissioner Standaert stated that the property 
has not been on the tax rolls for a long period of time:  Florida Terrace LLC only owned it for a few 
years prior to 1967 in was owned by a non-profit.  Commissioner Standaert stated that there was a 
good well source on the Florida Terrace property.  She felt subdividing but maintaining the water 
source would be a good idea.   Commissioner Standaert would like to explore the idea of 
affordable housing with the Mountain Housing Authority before putting the property on the open 
market.  Mayor Helms asked Interim Town Manager Richardson the restrictions around a well site.  
Mr. Richardson stated that nothing could be built or developed within a 100 feet radius of the well 
head.  Commissioner Vinson felt that the Board should listen to public comments that have arisen 
over the past several years and explore other avenues.  Commissioner Standaert suggested having 
Mountain Housing Authority come do a presentation to Council.    Mayor Pro Tem Fouche was not 
against hearing from Mountain Housing Authority but she was ready to move forward rather 
quickly with a decision.  Mayor Helms briefly reviewed the “Step-By-Step Procedures for Disposal 
of Surplus Property which could be found on the School of Government website and advised the 
Board to review in greater detail prior to a final vote.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche asked if a decision 
would be made on this day and Mayor Helms stated that it would be discussed and voted on in 
open session.   
 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further business, Commissioner Gilliland moved to adjourn the Town Council 
Special Workshop.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded and the motion carried 5/0.  The meeting 
was adjourned at 3:57 p.m.  
 
   

Tim Helms, Mayor  Angela Murphy, Town Clerk 

Packet Page 6



 Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Public Forum  
February 2, 2017 
Walkup Building 

  

 

Book 16; Page  

Board members present
Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche  

: Mayor Tim Helms 

Commissioner Kent Otto 
Commissioner Mary Standaert 
Commissioner Ann Vinson 
 

Board members absent:
 

 Commissioner Bill Gilliland 

Town staff present
Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 

:  Al Richardson, Interim Town Administrator 

     

 
Call to Order 

Approximately 27 people were in attendance.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to order at 6:30 
p.m. and led the group in a moment of silence. 
 

 
Agenda Approval 

Commissioner Vinson moved to adopt the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Otto seconded 
and the agenda was approved 4/0. 
 

 
Public Forum 

Mrs. Grace Nichols of 527 Suwannee Drive, was interested to hear how the Council gathered their 
information from the people they serve as well as vetting ideas and suggestions.  Mrs. Nichols 
expressed her appreciation for the 30 minute Public Forum period.  She felt that it is not as 
intimidating as perhaps some of the previously timed public comment periods during the 
meetings.    Commissioner Vinson stated that she relies on emails and open conversations with 
community members.  Commissioner Standaert consistently relies on emails as well as being 
present in the community and in the Town Services Offices.  She frequently visits the Friends of 
Montreat Facebook Page which is operated by members of the Community.  Commissioner 
Standaert will also be available at the Huckleberry on the first Friday of the month from 10:00 a.m. 
to 11:00 a.m. for anyone who would like to visit with her.  Commissioner Otto prefers face-to-face 
conversations rather than email.  Mrs. Nichols also suggested that instead of appointing members 
to committees that it would be a good idea to ask for volunteers to get the cross section of the 
community that might not be represented.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche had mentioned the idea of a 
blog or a discussion board but does not want it to turn into a forum for unpleasant comments.  
She also relies on emails and being approachable within the Town.  Commissioner Standaert 
mentioned that the Town of Cary had an interactive way of communicating with their Board and it 
would be nice to look into a similar program for Montreat.    

Packet Page 7



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Public Forum Minutes 

 February 2, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page  

Mr. Joe Standaert of 118 Shenandoah Terrace mentioned that the Town of Montreat used to send 
out a newsletter to all taxpayers to keep them up to date on Town happenings but that had ceased 
to exist in order to save money a few years ago.  Mr. Standaert had some concerns about how 
taxpayers receive their information if they are not members of the Sunshine List or visit the 
Facebook Page and Town Website.   
 
Commissioner Standaert suggested that perhaps a more user-friendly website be investigated 
once the new Town Administrator is in place.   
 
Mrs. Shannon Ingersoll of 124 Eastminster Terrace, was unable to make it to the recent Florida 
Terrace Workshop but she wanted to express her opinion that the property should be sold in order 
to get the property back on the tax rolls.  Commissioner Standaert stated that the property had 
only been on the tax rolls for about 2 years and prior to that it was part of the College’s non-profit 
organization.   
 
Mr. Don Reid of 127 Shenandoah Terrace, wanted to speak to the topic of changing the Town of 
Montreat’s Mission Statement to include the word “inclusive”.  Mr. Reid was against this verbiage 
for several reasons one of which was that “inclusive” is a hard word to define.  Mr. Reid felt that 
this change could further divide the Town.  Mr. Reid referenced an issue that occurred with the 
Charlotte Town Council which became a national issue. Mr. Reid also referenced that a previous 
Council spent a lot of time and effort on the Living Wage Law and every single employee of the 
Town of Montreat makes more than the living wage.  Mr. Reid felt that a problem was addressed 
that did not need to be.  Mr. Reid felt that before the Town tackles “inclusiveness” we need to 
look inside the Town where the churches have divided, fraud was used to describe the November 
election, and people do not speak to each other in the post office.  Mr. Reid felt that we should 
start inside the town and not worry about what other people outside think.   

 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further discussion, Mayor Pro Tem Fouche moved to adjourn the Public Forum 
Meeting.  Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion carried 4/0.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 7:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
__________________________________  ______________________________________ 
  Tim Helms, Mayor     Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
 

 
 
 

Packet Page 8



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Meeting 
 February 2, 2017 
Walkup Building 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
Board members present

Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 
: Mayor Tim Helms 

Commissioner Kent Otto 
Commissioner Mary Standaert 
Commissioner Ann Vinson 
 

Board members absent:
 

 Commissioner Bill Gilliland    

Town staff present
Steve Freeman, Public Works Director 

:  Al Richardson, Interim Town Administrator 

Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
Jack Staggs, Chief of Police 
Barry Creasman, Senior Water Operator 
David Currie, Code Administrator/Building Inspector 
Stefan Stackhouse, Finance Officer 

    David Arrant, Police Captain 
 
Approximately 30 members of the public were also present.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to 
order at 7:04 p.m., led the group in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance, and held a moment of 
silence.   

 
Agenda Approval 

Commissioner Standaert felt that this meeting should be addressed as an agenda meeting.  Mayor 
Helms stated that it had been advertised as a regular meeting and that is how the Council would 
proceed.  Mayor Helms further stated that in March the Board will go back to having 2 meetings as 
the Rules & Procedures state.  Interim Administrator Al Richardson stated that the vote of last 
month to do away with the agenda meeting was in direct violation of Rule #32 under Rules & 
Procedures.  Mr. Richardson consulted with the Town Attorney who confirmed that in order to 
change the meeting schedule a vote of 2/3 (66%) of all actual membership is required.  Mr. 
Richardson stated that holding the regular meeting this evening would be perfectly acceptable.  
Commissioner Otto spoke to the School of Government about this issue and they said to proceed 
as scheduled and then correct the meeting schedule going forward.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche 
moved to accept the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Standaert seconded the motion.  
Commissioner Otto suggested removing item B, Vision Insurance, from New Business.  
Commissioner Otto stated that in light of the fact that Council had changed insurance twice that 
perhaps it would be best to package this whole conversation for the Board Retreat.  Mr. 
Richardson advised that there was a limited coverage vision policy with Blue Cross Blue Shield and 
when Council switched to United Healthcare there was a savings that allowed for a Vision 
Coverage Plan to be added.    Upon switching back to Blue Cross Blue Shield, due to the 
prescription drug benefits, vision coverage was omitted.  Mr. Richardson has been in contact with 

Packet Page 9



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

February 2, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

the League of Municipalities for a quote for health insurance for the upcoming year.   
Commissioner Standaert suggested that this item be left on the agenda and perhaps table it for 
another time.  The motion to approve the agenda as presented carried 4/0. 
 

 
Mayor’s Communications 

Mayor Helms had no communications this evening.  
 

 
Consent Agenda Review 

The proposed Consent Agenda will include the following items: 
• January 5, 2016, Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 
• January 5, 2016, Public Forum Meeting Minutes 
• January 12, 2016, Town Council Meeting Minutes 

 

 
Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Interim Town Administrator Richardson announced that the Town of Montreat property 
reappraisal values are out and have been received. 
 
     

 
Administrative Reports 

Police Chief:

 

  Chief Staggs reviewed and presented the January 2016 monthly departmental 
activity report.  Chief Staggs thanked Public Work Crews for their hard work with snow removal 
and stated that there were no accidents or stranded motorist calls during this time.  Montreat 
Police Department made approximately 27 extra spot checks of residences around Town.  These 
checks are separate than residents requesting house checks.  Commissioner Standaert asked if the 
lack of evidence storage room impacted any of the situations that occurred this month with 
firearms and drugs.  Chief Staggs stated the impact was minimal mainly because any of the 
evidence from incidents that occurred at Montreat College would be stored at Black Mountain 
Police Department.  Chief Staggs announced that the Montreat Police Department was reinstating 
a promotion program to officers.  This program will allow for advancement with the completion of 
years served and NC Justice Academy courses and applicable testing completed.       

Public Works Director:  Public Works Director Steve Freeman announced that crews have started 
their annual fire hydrant inspection and flushing systems.  They have completed about 1/3 of the 
hydrants which equates to about 30 out of 97 hydrants in Town.  Mr. Freeman advised that 
residents may see some mild discoloration in their water and if this happens they need to call the 
Town Services Office.  This flushing process will also help iron buildup problems.  Crews have 
replaced the roofing on Well B on Texas Road.  The second snow event earlier this week did not 
allow enough precipitation for plowing, as at least an inch is needed, but crews did use their new 
ice melt spreader to distribute 6 tons of sand and 150 pounds of ice melt. 

Packet Page 10



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

February 2, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

Finance Officer:
 

  Mr. Stackhouse presented and reviewed the following monthly reports: 

• December 2016 Financial Summary Report; 
• Final December 2016 Detailed Financial Statement; 
• December 31, 2016 Cash and Investment Earnings Report; 
• Preliminary January 2016 Detailed Financial Statements 

 
Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer:

 

  Mr. Currie presented and reviewed his January 
2016 zoning and inspections activity report.  Mr. Currie did 29 fire inspections and 10 fire re-
inspections during the month.  There was a Board of Adjustments variance hearing on January 26th 
and due to the creativity of a neighbor the variance was withdrawn.  There was no Planning and 
Zoning meeting held during the month. 

Public Comments
 

  

Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to 
items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications. 
 
Mrs. Martha Campbell of 149 Maryland Place, looked up the definition of inclusive and found that 
it means “treating all groups or all members of a group equally and without exception” and she 
supports adding this phrase to the Town of Montreat’s mission statement. 
 

 
Old Business 

There is no Old Business to discuss. 

 
New Business 

A. Montreat as an inclusive community:  Commissioner Standaert moved to change the Board of 
Commissioners Mission Statement to include the phrase “to be an inclusive community”.  
Commissioner Vinson seconded the motion.  Commissioner Standaert stated that this was not 
meant to be a political statement but that it was meant to be simply what it says that Montreat 
is an inclusive community and we treat people equally.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche does not feel it 
is necessary to add words to the Mission Statement she thinks it is necessary to live out what 
we believe on a daily basis.  Commissioner Vinson stated that we do need to strive to be an 
inclusive community and be reminded of it every day.  Commissioner Otto felt that actions 
speak louder than words.  Commissioner Otto spends a lot of time volunteering at Montreat 
College and sees that there is a diverse population of students and he has seen multiple 
families in Town take students in for meals and laundry, pay for books, send care packages and 
the list goes on.  Commissioner Otto felt we should continue to show inclusiveness through 
actions rather than changing the mission statement or adding signs.  Commissioner Standaert 
felt that we if we are an inclusive community what would be wrong with adding it to the 
Mission Statement since we are already fulfilling the Mission of the Board of Commissioners.  

Packet Page 11



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

February 2, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

The motion was tied 2/2 with Commissioner Otto and Mayor Pro Tem Fouche voting against 
the motion.  Mayor Helms voted to break the tie and the motion failed 2/3.  Mayor Helms 
suggested that a workshop or the Annual Board Retreat would be more appropriate to address 
an item such as this.    
 

B. Employee Benefit Health Insurance – Vision:

 

  Commissioner Vinson moved to authorize the 
Town Administrator and Finance Officer to contract with Blue Cross/Blue Shield of North 
Carolina, effective as soon as possible, to add the Blue 20/20 Exam Plus vision benefit to our 
health insurance package at a cost of $8.80 per employee per month.  Motion died for lack of a 
second. 

C. Regular Board Meeting of January 12th, 2017:  

  

 Mayor Helms announced that in March the 
Council will go back to having two meetings a month.  The first Thursday will be the Agenda 
Meeting preceded by the Public Forum at 6:30 p.m. and the second Thursday will be the 
regular Town Council Meeting.  The motion at the last meeting failed because we needed an 
affirmative vote equal or greater than two-thirds of all the actual membership of the Board, 
excluding any vacant seats and not including the Mayor.   Commissioner Vinson suggested 
adding this item to the Annual Board Retreat to brainstorm other ways to set the agenda.  

 
Public Comments-Other Topics 

Mayor Helms reiterated that the Public Comment period were for remarks pertaining to public 
business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or communications from 
other community entities. 
 
Mr. Mike Sonnenberg of 125 Virginia Road, stated that he would like to see an aisle incorporated 
in the room setup for ease of movement for speakers. 
 
Mr. Richard DuBose of 160 Woodland Road, representing Mountain Retreat Association, 
presented a check of just under $9,000.00 in community fees to Mayor Helms.   
 
Mrs. Annie Carlson of Montreat College, announced that the College recently opened an exercise 
science lab which is a new major of study at Montreat College.  Mrs. Carlson also advised Council 
that the Black Mountain Campus of Montreat College had recently put in stands, a press box and 
lights at Pulliam Stadium.  This funding came from the Buncombe County Tourism Grant.  Also a 
new online Cyber-Security degree was established in January for non-traditional students.  Early 
projections for enrollment look good for the upcoming school year.   
 

 
 
 
 

Packet Page 12



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

February 2, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
Commissioner Communications 

Commissioner Vinson had the fliers, established by the Montreat Tree Board, for what to do if a 
tree falls and firewise available if anyone would like a copy.  Commissioner Vinson also reminded 
everyone in attendance that the Native Plant Sale is scheduled for April 29th. 
 
Commissioner Otto encouraged everyone to step into the Montreat College sports program.  
These are great opportunities to get out with neighbors and cheer on Montreat at the new sports 
facility. 
 
Commissioner Standaert mentioned that the living wage ordinance was passed at no cost to the 
Town and everyone on the Board was well aware that employees made more than the living wage.  
Commissioner Standaert advised those in attendance that the Board met with regards to the 
Florida Terrace Property recently and several idea were tossed about one of which was to sell the 
property and another was the possibility of low income housing.  Commissioner Standaert would 
like to hear some input from the community about these ideas.  Commissioner Standaert stated 
that several people had expressed difficulties getting in touch with Representative Patrick 
McHenry.  When you enter the portal you enter the zip code plus your post office box number and 
then type your message.  In order to send the message you enter your post office box under street 
name and your message will be accepted. 
 

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates 

Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:  
 

February 28, 2017, 9:30 a.m. Montreat Tree Board: 
Town Services Building 

 
March 1, 2017, 9:00 a.m. Montreat Landcare: 

Allen Building 
Swannanoa Room 

 
March 2, 2017, 7:00 p.m. March Town Council Agenda Meeting: 

Walkup Building 
Public Forum starts at 6:30 p.m. 

 
March 9, 2017, 7:00 p.m. March Town Council Meeting: 

Walkup Building 
 

 
 
 

Packet Page 13



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

February 2, 2017 
 

 

Book 16; Page 

 
Closed Session 

Commissioner Vinson moved to enter into Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina 
General Statute §143-318.11(6) for discussion of a personnel matter.  Commissioner Otto 
seconded and the motion carried 4/0.   
 
Upon a motion by Commissioner Vinson and a second by Mayor Pro Tem Fouche with the motion 
carrying 4/0, the Board returned to Open Session.  Commissioner Vinson moved to hire Mr. Alex 
Carmichael as the Town of Montreat’s new Town Administrator with an annual salary of $70,000 
beginning February 20, 2017.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded and the motion carried 4/0. 
 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further business, Commissioner Vinson moved to adjourn the Town Council 
Meeting.  Commissioner Kent seconded and the motion carried 4/0.  The meeting was adjourned 
at 8:37 p.m.  
 
 
   

Tim Helms, Mayor  Angela Murphy, Town Clerk 

 

Packet Page 14



J:\BOC\ANNUAL_MEETING_CALENDARS\2017_BOC_Meeting_Calendar_ADOPTED_2212017.docx 

2017 Town of Montreat Board of Commissioners Meeting Calendar 
January 2017 February 2017 March 2017 April 2017 

S M T W R F S 
1 2 3 4 555 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 223 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30 31     

 

S M T W R F S 
   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28     

 

S M T W R F S 
   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30 31  

 

S M T W R F S 
      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 
30 

24 25 26 27 28 29 
 
 

 

May 2017 June 2017 July 2017 August 2017 
S M T W R F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30 31    

 
 

S M T W R F S 
    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30  

 

S M T W R F S 
      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 
30 

24 
31 

25 26 27 28 29 
 

 

S M T W R F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30 31   

 

 
September 2017 October 2017 November 2017 December 2017 

S M T W R F S 
     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
       

 

S M T W R F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30 31     

 

S M T W R F S 
   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30   

 
 

S M T W R F S 
     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
31       

 

 Agenda Meetings  Town Council Meetings  Agenda Item Deadlines  Town Services Office Closed 

*Adoption of this calendar does not preclude a call for any additional meetings at the Board’s discretion with appropriate public notice* 

 

Packet Page 15



Packet Page 16



Packet Page 17



Packet Page 18



Packet Page 19



Packet Page 20



Packet Page 21



Packet Page 22



Packet Page 23



Packet Page 24



Packet Page 25



Packet Page 26



Packet Page 27



Packet Page 28



Packet Page 29



J:\BOC\Packets\2017\March Packet\Board Action Request - BBT Accts - 9Mar2017.docx 

TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:   9 March 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Designation of BB&T account authorized signatories 

AGENDA INFORMATION
 

: 

Agenda Location:    
Item Number:        
Department: Administration     
Contact:  Stefan Stackhouse       
Presenter:  Stefan Stackhouse      

BRIEF SUMMARY: The Town has two money market accounts with BB&T, one each for the 
general and water funds. With the departures of Mayor Taylor, Town Administrator Nalley, and 
Town Clerk Gedlinske, Commissioner Mary Standaert remains at present the only authorized 
signatory. We now need to authorize new signatories for these accounts.      

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS

  

: The Board of Commissioners hereby 
designates Mayor Timothy Helms as the primary authorized signatory for the Town’s BB&T 
money market account numbers 0005105067250 and 0005105067161, and hereby designates I 
Town Administrator Alex Carmichael, Town Clerk Angela Murphy, and Board Member Kent Otto 
as additional authorized signatories for these accounts.  

FUNDING SOURCE
 

: not applicable  

ATTACHMENTS: none    

STAFF COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

 

: None           

 

Packet Page 30



 

730 13th Avenue Drive SE ♦ Hickory, NC 28602 ♦ 828-327-2727 ♦ Fax 828-328-2324 
13 South Center Street ♦ Taylorsville, NC 28681 ♦ 828-632-9025 ♦ Fax 828-632-9085 

PO Box 5729 ♦ Statesville, NC 28687 ♦ 1710 Wilkesboro Hwy ♦ Statesville, NC 28625 ♦ 704-872-8923 ♦ Fax 704-872-4982 

800-948-0585 ♦ www.martinstarnes.com 

 

February 20, 2017 

 

 

Stefan Stackhouse, Finance Officer 

Town of Montreat 

96 Rainbow Terrace 

Black Mountain, NC  28711 

 

 

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Montreat, NC, as 

of June 30, 2017, and for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 

collectively comprise the Town of Montreat’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by means of this 

letter.  Our audit will be conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on each opinion unit. 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that certain 

supplementary information, such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis, be presented to supplement 

the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 

required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 

financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 

historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required 

supplementary information (RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America. These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding 

their methods of measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with 

management’s responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance 

on the RSI. The following RSI is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

of America. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be audited: 

 

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance schedules 

 Local Government Employees’ Retirement System’s schedules 

 

Packet Page 31

http://www.martinstarnes.com/


 

 

Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany the Town of Montreat’s basic financial 

statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in 

our audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 

reconciling the supplementary information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 

the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance 

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion 

on the following supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole: 

 

 Combining and individual fund financial statements (if applicable) 

 Budgetary schedules 

 Supplemental ad valorem tax schedules 

 

The following other information accompanying the financial statements will not be subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements, and our auditor’s report will not provide an 

opinion or any assurance on that other information: 

 

 Introductory section 

 Statistical tables 

 

The Objective of an Audit 

 

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your basic financial statements are 

fairly presented, in all material respects, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and 

to report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph (if any) when 

considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance 

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and will include tests of the 

accounting records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We 

cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it 

is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our 

opinions on the financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in 

advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed 

opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement.  

 

General Audit Procedures 

 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America (U.S. GAAS) and Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from 

material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 

and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

error, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental 

regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

Internal Control Audit Procedures 

 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 

unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is 

properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. 

  

Packet Page 32



 

 

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 

control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or 

material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have 

identified during the audit. 

 

Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 

misstatement, we will perform tests of the Town of Montreat’s compliance with the provisions of applicable 

laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an 

opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion. 

 

Management’s Responsibilities 

 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with 

governance, acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 

 

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 

2. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 

fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

error fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental 

regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements; 

3. To provide us with: 

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and 

fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters; 

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain 

audit evidence. 

4. For including the auditor’s report in any document containing financial statements that indicates 

that such financial statements have been audited by the entity’s auditor; 

5. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its 

activities 

6. For adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the 

management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by 

us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s) under audit are 

immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole; and 

7. For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your 

management representation letter. 

 

With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your 

responsibility (a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable 

criteria, (b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary information, 

(c) to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary 

information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information, and (d) to present 

the supplementary information with the audited financial statements, or if the supplementary information 

will not be presented with the audited financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily 

available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you 

of the supplementary information and our report thereon.  

 

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged with 

governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit. 
Packet Page 33



 

 

Reporting 
  

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Town of Montreat’s basic financial 

statements. Our report will be addressed to the governing body of the Town of Montreat. We cannot provide 

assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for 

us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the 

engagement. 

 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report describing the scope 

of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with laws, regulations, and 

provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing.  However, providing an opinion on 

internal control and compliance will not be an objective of the audit and, therefore, no such opinion will be 

expressed. 

 

Other  

 

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents 

or invoices selected by us for testing. 

 

We will provide copies of our reports to the Town of Montreat; however, management is responsible for 

distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing 

privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

 

With regard to using the auditor’s report, you understand that you must obtain our prior written consent to 

reproduce or use our report in bond offering official statements or other documents. 

 

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements 

published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute 

information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider 

the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document. 

 

We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving 

your account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain 

committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information.  Accordingly, we maintain 

internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In 

addition, we will secure confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality 

of your information and we will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate 

procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the 

event that we are unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide 

your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party service provider. 

Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party service providers. 

 

Provisions of Engagement Administration and Fees  

 

During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail, 

and you should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted 

communications. 

 

Paula Hodges is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. Her responsibilities 

include supervising Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.’s services performed as part of this 

engagement and signing or authorizing another qualified firm representative to sign the audit report.  To 

ensure that our independence is not impaired under the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct, you agree 

to inform the engagement partner before entering into any substantive employment discussions with any of 

our personnel. 

Packet Page 34



 

 

Our fees for these services are stated in the Contract to Audit Accounts.  Our invoices for these fees will be 

rendered in four installments as work progresses and are payable on presentation.  In accordance with our 

firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes overdue and may not be resumed until your 

account is paid in full.  If we elect to terminate our services for non-payment, our engagement will be 

deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed 

our reports.  You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-

of-pocket costs through the date of termination.   

 

We will notify you immediately of any circumstances we encounter that could significantly affect this initial 

fee estimate. Whenever possible, we will attempt to use the Town of Montreat’s personnel to assist in the 

preparation of schedules and analyses of accounts. This effort could substantially reduce our time 

requirements and facilitate the timely conclusion of the audit. 

 

If we determine that we are required to perform a single audit in accordance with the audit requirements of 

Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act, and these procedures and related fees were not included in our original audit contract, 

we may amend our audit contract and supplemental bill for these additional procedures. 

 

We want our clients to receive the maximum value for our professional services and to perceive that our 

fees are reasonable and fair. In working to provide you with such value, we find there are certain 

circumstances that can cause us to perform work in excess of that contemplated in our fee estimate.  

 

Following are some of the more common reasons for potential supplemental billings: 

 

Changing Laws and Regulations 

 

There are many governmental and rule-making boards that regularly add or change their requirements. 

Although we attempt to plan our work to anticipate the requirements that will affect our engagement, there 

are times when this is not possible.  We will discuss these situations with you at the earliest possible time 

in order to make the necessary adjustments and amendments in our engagement. 

 

Incorrect Accounting Methods or Errors in Client Records 

 

We base our fee estimates on the expectation that client accounting records are in order so that our work 

can be completed using our standard testing and accounting procedures. However, should we find numerous 

errors, incomplete records, or the application of incorrect accounting methods, we will have to perform 

additional work to make the corrections and reflect those changes in the financial statements. 

 

Failure to Prepare for the Engagement 

 

In an effort to minimize your fees, we assign you the responsibility for the preparation of schedules and 

documents needed for the engagement. We also discuss matters such as availability of your key personnel, 

deadlines, and work space. If your personnel are unable, for whatever reasons, to provide these items as 

previously agreed upon, it might substantially increase the work we must do to complete the engagement 

within the scheduled time.  

 

Starting and Stopping Our Work 

 

If we must withdraw our staff because of the condition of the client's records, or the failure to provide 

agreed upon items within the established timeline for the engagement, we will not be able to perform our 

work in a timely, efficient manner, as established by our engagement plan. This will result in additional 

fees, as we must reschedule our personnel and incur additional start-up costs. 

  
Packet Page 35



 

 

The contract fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that 

unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit.  If significant additional time is 

necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

Our fees for such services range from $75-$300 per hour.  

 

During the course of the audit, we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over, 

your operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either 

orally or in writing.  

 

We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least five years from the date 

of our report. 

 

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the financial statements of which you may become aware 

during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued. 

 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. 

and constitutes confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit 

documentation available to the Local Government Commission, Office of the State Auditor, federal or State 

agencies and the U.S. Government Accountability Office pursuant to authority given to it by law or 

regulation, or to peer reviewers. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under 

the supervision of Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.’s personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we 

may provide copies of selected audit documentation to these agencies and regulators. The regulators and 

agencies may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including 

other governmental agencies. We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at 

least five years from the date of our report. 

 

Further, we will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and accounting 

matters of a routine nature.  With respect to any nonattest services we perform, the Town of Montreat’s 

management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and performing all management 

functions; (b) assigning a competent individual to oversee the services; (c) evaluating the adequacy of the 

services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for the results of the services performed; 

and (e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 

 

Government Auditing Standards require that we document an assessment of the skills, knowledge, and 

experience of management, should we participate in any form of preparation of the basic financial 

statements and related schedules or disclosures as these actions are deemed a non-audit service. 

  

Packet Page 36



 

 

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with 

governance the following significant findings from the audit: 

 

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices; 

 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit; 

 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any; 

 Disagreements with management, if any; 

 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, 

significant and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial 

reporting process; 

 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of 

our audit procedures; 

 Representations we requested from management; 

 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and 

 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of 

correspondence, with management. 

 

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we have attached a copy of our 

latest external peer review report of our firm to the Contract to Audit Accounts for your consideration and 

files. 

 

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement 

with, the arrangements for our audit of the financial statements, including our respective responsibilities. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to working with 

you and your staff.  

 

Respectfully, 

 

 
 

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. 

Hickory, North Carolina 

 

RESPONSE: 

 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the Town of Montreat. 

 

Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of the Town of Montreat by: 

 

Name: ______________________________________________________________ 

 

Title: _______________________________________________________________ 

 

Date: _______________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Packet Page 37



LGC-205 (Rev. 2017) 
CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS

Of ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Primary Governmental Unit 

________________________________________________________________________________________________
Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) if applicable

On this ____________________ day of ____________________________, ___________, 

Auditor: _______________________________________ Auditor Mailing Address: __________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________ Hereinafter referred to as The Auditor

and ______________________________________ (Governing Board(s)) of___________________________________ 
(Primary Government)

and _____________________________________ : hereinafter referred to as the Governmental Unit(s), agree as follows:
(Discretely Presented Component Unit)

1. The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
and additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the Governmental Unit (s)
for the period beginning _________________, _________, and ending ___________________, _________. The
non-major combining, and individual fund statements and schedules shall be subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and an opinion will be rendered in relation to (as applicable) the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate DPCUs, each major governmental and enterprise
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (non-major government and enterprise funds, the internal
service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types).

2. At a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct his/her audit and render his/her report in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. The Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
if required by the State Single Audit Implementation Act, as codified in G.S. 159-34. If required by OMB Uniform
Administration Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, (Uniform Guidance)
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, the Auditor shall perform a Single Audit. This audit and all
associated audit documentation may be subject to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal
and State laws, including the staffs of the Office of State Auditor (OSA) and the Local Government Commission
(LGC). If the audit and auditor communication are found in this review to be substandard, the results of the review
may be forwarded to the North Carolina State Board of CPA Examiners (NC CPA Board).

County and Multi-County Health Departments:  The Office of State Auditor will designate certain programs that
have eligibility requirements to be considered major programs in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance for the
State of North Carolina.  The LGC will notify the auditor and the County and Multi-Health Department of these
programs.  A County or a Multi-County Health Department may be selected to audit any of these programs as major.

3. If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit standards - the
entity’s auditor will make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of the group auditor in
accordance with AU-6 §600.41 - §600.42.

4. This contract contemplates an unqualified opinion being rendered. The audit shall include such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the
circumstances. Any limitations or restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully explained
in an attachment to this contract.

5. If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing Standards, 2011
revisions, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this engagement, the Auditor
warrants that he has met the requirements for a peer review and continuing education as specified in Government

20th February 2017

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.

730 13th Avenue Dr. SE, Hickory, NC 28602

Board of Commissioners Town of Montreat, NC

N/A

July 1 2016 June 30 2017

Town of Montreat, NC

N/A

Packet Page 38



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
 Governmental Unit 
___________________________________________________ 
Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU) if applicable 

Page 2 of 8 

Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees to provide a copy of their most recent peer review report regardless of the 
date of the prior peer review report to the Governmental Unit and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of  
the audit contract (See Item 22).  If the audit firm received a peer review rating other than pass, the Auditor 
shall not contract with the Governmental Unit without first contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a peer review 
analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements.

If the audit engagement is not subject to Government Accounting Standards or if financial statements are not 
prepared in accordance with GAAP and fail to include all disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide 
an explanation as to why in an attachment..  

6. It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of audit
submitted to the State and Local Government Finance Division (SLGFD) within four months of fiscal year end.
Audit report is due on: __________________________, _________.  If it becomes necessary to amend this due date
or the audit fee, an amended contract along with a written explanation of the delay must be submitted to the
secretary of the LGC for approval.

7. It is agreed that generally accepted auditing standards include a review of the Governmental Unit’s systems of
internal control and accounting as same relate to accountability of funds and adherence to budget and law
requirements applicable thereto; that the Auditor will make a written report, which may or may not be a part of the
written report of audit, to the Governing Board setting forth his findings, together with his recommendations for
improvement. That written report must include all matters defined as “significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses” in AU-C 265 of the AICPA Professional Standards (Clarified). The Auditor shall file a copy of that
report with the Secretary of the LGC.

8. All local government and public authority contracts for audit or audit-related work require the approval of the
Secretary of the LGC.  This includes annual or special audits, agreed upon procedures related to internal controls,
bookkeeping or other assistance necessary to prepare the Governmental Unit’s records for audit, financial statement
preparation, any finance-related investigations, or any other audit-related work in the State of North Carolina.
Invoices for services rendered under these contracts shall not be paid by the Governmental Unit until the
invoice has been approved by the Secretary of the LGC. (This also includes any progress billings.) [G.S. 159-34
and 115C-447]  All invoices for Audit work must be submitted by email in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC
for approval.   The invoices must be sent via upload through the current portal address:
http://nctreasurer.slgfd.leapfile.net Subject line should read “Invoice – [Unit Name].   The PDF invoice marked
‘approved’ with approval date will be returned by email to the Auditor to present to the Governmental Unit for
payment.   Approval is not required on contracts and invoices for system improvements and similar services of a
non-auditing nature.

9. In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the provisions of this contract, the Primary Governmental Unit
shall pay to the Auditor, upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC, the fee, which includes any cost the Auditor
may incur from work paper or peer reviews or any other quality assurance program required by third parties (Federal
and State grantor and oversight agencies or other organizations) as required under the Federal and State Single Audit
Acts.  (Note: Fees listed on signature pages.)

10. If the Governmental Unit has outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall include documentation either in the notes
to the audited financial statements or as a separate report submitted to the SLGFD along with the audit report, a
calculation demonstrating compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant.  Additionally, the Auditor should be
aware that any other bond compliance statements or additional reports required in the authorizing bond documents
need to be submitted to the SLGFD simultaneously with the Governmental Unit's audited financial statements unless
otherwise specified in the bond documents.

Town of Montreat, NC

N/A

October 31 2017

Packet Page 39



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
 Governmental Unit 
___________________________________________________ 
Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU) if applicable 

Page 3 of 8 

11. After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This report
shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: (a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis, (b) the
financial statements and notes of the Governmental Unit and all of its component units prepared in accordance with
GAAP, (c) supplementary information requested by the client or required for full disclosure under the law, and (d)
the Auditor’s opinion on the material presented. The Auditor shall furnish the required number of copies of the
report of audit to the Governing Board as soon as practical after the close of the accounting period.

12. If the audit firm is required by the NC CPA Board or the Secretary of the LGC to have a pre-issuance review of their
audit work, there must be a statement added to the engagement letter specifying the pre-issuance review including a
statement that the Governmental Unit will not be billed for the pre-issuance review.  The pre-issuance review must
be performed prior to the completed audit being submitted to the LGC.  The pre-issuance report must accompany
the audit report upon submission to the LGC.

13. The Auditor shall electronically submit the report of audit to the LGC as a text-based PDF file when (or prior to)
submitting the invoice for services rendered.  The report of audit, as filed with the Secretary of the LGC, becomes a
matter of public record for inspection, review and copy in the offices of the SLGFD by any interested parties. Any
subsequent revisions to these reports must be sent to the Secretary of the LGC. These audited financial statements,
excluding the Auditors’ opinion, may be used in the preparation of official statements for debt offerings, by
municipal bond rating services to fulfill secondary market disclosure requirements of the  Securities Exchange
Commission and other lawful purposes of the Governmental Unit without subsequent consent of the Auditor.  If
it is determined by the LGC that corrections need to be made to the Governmental Unit’s financial statements,
they should be provided within three days of notification unless another time frame is agreed to by the LGC.

If the OSA designates certain programs to be audited as major programs, as discussed in item #2, a turnaround
document and a representation letter addressed to the OSA shall be submitted to the LGC.

The LGC’s process for submitting contracts, audit reports and invoices is subject to change.  Auditors should use the
submission process in effect at the time of submission.  The most current instructions will be found on our website:

14. Should circumstances disclosed by the audit call for a more detailed investigation by the Auditor than necessary
under ordinary circumstances, the Auditor shall inform the Governing Board in writing of the need for such
additional investigation and the additional compensation required therefore. Upon approval by the Secretary of the
LGC, this contract may be varied or changed to include the increased time and/or compensation as may be agreed
upon by the Governing Board and the Auditor

15.
Amended LGC-205 contract form and pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee.  This

amended contract needs to be completed in full, including a written explanation of the change, signed and dated by
all original parties to the contract, and then must be submitted through the audit contract portal to the Secretary of
the LGC for approval. The portal address to upload your amended contract is  http://nctreasurer.slgfd.leapfile.net
No change shall be effective unless approved by the Secretary of the LGC, the Governing Board, and the Auditor.

16. A copy of the engagement letter, issued by the Auditor and signed by both the Auditor and the Governmental Unit
should be attached to the contract, and by reference here becomes part of the contract.  In case of conflict between
the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract will control. Engagement
letter terms that conflict with the contract are deemed to be void unless the conflicting terms of this contract are

A copy of the engagement letter, issued by the Auditor and signed by both the Auditor and the Governmental Unit

g

Town of Montreat, NC

N/A

Packet Page 40



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
 Governmental Unit 
___________________________________________________ 

Page 4 of 8 

17. Special provisions should be limited.  Please list any special provisions in an attachment.

18. A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted. If a DPCU is
subject to the audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and a separate
audit report is issued, a separate audit contract is required.  If a separate report is not to be issued and the DPCU is
included in the primary government audit, the DPCU must be named along with the parent government on this audit
contract. Signatures from the DPCU Board chairman and finance officer also must be included on this contract.

19. The contract must be executed, pre-audited, physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit and
Auditor signatures and submitted in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC.  The current portal address to upload
your contractual documents is   http://nctreasurer.slgfd.leapfile.net      Electronic signatures are not accepted at this
time.  Included with this contract are instructions to submit contracts and invoices for approval as of 

. These instructions are subject to change.  Please check the NC Treasurer’s web site at
 for the most recent instructions.

20. The contract is not valid until it is approved by the LGC Secretary.  The staff of the LGC shall notify the
Governmental Unit and Auditor of contract approval by email.  The audit should not be started before the
contract is approved.

21. There are no other agreements between the parties hereto and no other agreements relative hereto that shall be
enforceable unless entered into in accordance with the procedure set out herein and approved by the Secretary of the
LGC.

22. E-Verify.  Auditor shall comply with the requirements of NCGS Chapter 64 Article 2.  Further, if Auditor utilizes
any subcontractor(s), Auditor shall require such subcontractor(s) to comply with the requirements of NCGS
Chapter 64, Article 2.

23. Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor, and all subcontractors, are not on the Iran Final Divestment List (“List”)
created by the North Carolina State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. 147-86.58. Contractor shall not utilize any
subcontractor that is identified on the List.

25. All of the above paragraphs are understood and shall apply to this contract, except the following numbered
paragraphs shall be deleted: (See Item 16 for clarification).

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW

Town of Montreat, NC

N/A

Packet Page 41



Packet Page 42



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
 Governmental Unit 
___________________________________________________ 
Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU) if applicable 

Page 6 of 8 

** This page to only be completed by Discretely Presented Component Units ** 

__________________________________________________________________ FEES
Year-end bookkeeping assistance – [For audits subject to Government Auditing Standards, this is limited to 
bookkeeping services permitted by revised Independence Standards] ________________________________________ 

Audit____________________________________________________________________________________________

Preparation of the annual financial Statements _________________________________________________________
Prior to submission of the completed audited financial report, applicable compliance reports and amended contract (if 
required) the Auditor may submit invoices for approval for services rendered, not to exceed 75% of the total of the stated 
fees above.  If the current contracted fee is not fixed in total, invoices for services rendered may be approved for up to 
75% of the prior year audit fee.   
The 75% cap for interim invoice approval for this audit contract is $_______________________________________

** NA if there is to be no interim billing 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Communication regarding audit contract requests for 
modification or official approvals will be sent to the 
email addresses provided in the spaces below.
DPCU Governmental Unit Signatures:
_____________________________________________
Name of Discreetly Presented Component Unit

By___________________________________________
DPCU Board Chairperson: Type or print name and title

___________________________________________
Signature of Chairperson of DPCU governing board  

Date________________________________

By___________________________________________
Chair of Audit Committee - Type or print name

________________________________________ **
Signature of Audit Committee Chairperson

Date________________________________
** If Governmental Unit has no audit committee, mark 
this section "N/A" 

___________________________________________
PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE: Required by G.S. 159-28
(a)
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner 
required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control 
Act.  Additionally, the following date is the date this audit 
contract was approved by the governing body.

By___________________________________________
DPCU Finance Officer:
Type or print name 

_____________________________________________
DPCU Finance Officer Signature 
Date________________________________
(Pre-audit Certificate must be dated.) 

_____________________________________________
Email Address of Finance Officer

Date DPCU Governing Body Approved Audit 
Contract - G.S. 159-34(a ) 

_____________________________________________

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Town of Montreat, NC

N/A

N/A

N/A

Packet Page 43



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
 Governmental Unit 
___________________________________________________ 
Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU) if applicable 

Page 7 of 8 

Steps to Completing the Audit Contract
1. Complete the Header Information – NEW: If a DPCU is subject to the audit requirements as detailed in the Local

Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and a separate audit report is issued, a separate audit contract is 
required.  If a separate report is not issued for the DPCU and is to be included in the Primary Government’s audit, 
the DPCU must be named with the parent government on this Audit contract. The Board chairman of the DPCU 
also must sign the Audit contract. 

2. Item No. 1 – Complete the period covered by the audit

3. Item No. 6 – Fill in the audit due date.  For Governmental Unit (s), the contract due date can be no later than 4
months after the end of the fiscal year, even though amended contracts may not be required until a later date.

4. Item No. 8 – If the process for invoice approval instructions changed, the Auditor should make sure he and his
administrative staff are familiar with the current process. Instructions for each process can be found at the
following link. https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Audit-Forms-and-Resources.aspx

5. Item No. 9 – NEW: Please note that the fee section has been moved to the signature pages, Pages 5 & 6.

6. Item No. 16 – NEW: It is now expected that an engagement letter will be attached to the contract.  Has the
engagement letter been attached to the contract submitted to the SLGFD?

a. Do the terms and fees specified in the engagement letter agree with the Audit contract?  “In case of
conflict between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this
contract will control.”

b. Does the engagement letter contain an indemnification clause?  The audit contract will not be
approved if there is an indemnification clause – refer to LGC Memo # 986.

7. Complete the fee section for BOTH the Primary Government and the DPCU (if applicable) on the signature
pages, please note:

The cap on interim payments is 75% of the current audit fee for services rendered if the contracted fee
amount is a fixed amount.  If any part of the fee is variable, interim payments are limited to 75% of the
prior year’s total audit fee.  If the contract fee is partially variable, we will compare the authorized
interim payment on the contract to 75% of last year’s actual approved total audit fee amount according to
our records.   There is a report of audit fees paid by each governmental unit on our web site:
https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Non-Audit-Services-and-Audit-Fees.aspx - Auditors and Audit
Fees.
Please call or email at 919-814-429 @nctreasurer.com if you have any
questions about the fees on this list.

For variable fees for services, are the hourly rates or other rates clearly stated in detail?  If issued
separately in an addendum, has the separate page been acknowledged in writing by the Governmental
Unit?

Town of Montreat, NC

N/A

Packet Page 44



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
 Governmental Unit 
___________________________________________________ 
Discretely Presented Component Units (DPCU) if applicable 

Page 8 of 8 

For fees for services that are a combination of fixed and variable fees, are the services to be provided for
the fixed portion of the fee clearly stated?  Are the hourly rates or other rates clearly stated for the 
variable portion of the fee?  (Note: See previous bullet point regarding variable fees.) 

If there is to be no interim billing, please indicate N/A instead of leaving the line blank.

8. Signature Area – There are now 2 Signature Pages: one for the Primary Government and one for the DPCU.
Send the page(s) that are applicable to your Unit of Government.  Make sure all signatures have been obtained,
and properly dated.  The contract must be approved by Governing Boards pursuant to G.S. 159-34(a).
NEW - If this contract includes auditing a DPCU that is a Public Authority under the Local Government Budget
and Fiscal Control Act it must be named in this Audit contract and the Board chairperson of the DPCU must also
sign the Audit contract in the area indicated. If the DPCU has a separate Audit, a separate Audit contract is
required for the DPCU.

9. Please place the date the Unit’s Governing Board and the DPCU’s governing Board (if applicable) approved the
audit contract in the space provided.

a. Please make sure that you provide email addresses for the audit firm and finance officer as these will be
used to communicate official approval of the contract.

b. Has the pre-audit certificate for the Primary Government (and the DPCU if applicable) been signed and
dated by the appropriate party?

c. Has the name and title of the Mayor or Chairperson of the Unit’s Governing Board and the DPCU’s
Chairperson (if applicable) been typed or printed on the contract and has he/she signed in the correct area
directly under the Auditor’s signature?

10. If the Auditor is performing an audit under the yellow book or single audit rules, has year-end bookkeeping
assistance been limited to those areas permitted under the revised GAO Independence Standards?  Although not
required, we encourage Governmental Units and Auditors to disclose the nature of these services in the contract
or an engagement letter. Fees for these services should be shown in the space indicated on the applicable
signature page(s) of the contract.

11. Has the most recently issued peer review report for the audit firm been included with the contract? This is
required if the audit firm has received a new peer review report that has not yet been forwarded to us.  The audit
firm is only required to send the most current Peer Review report to us once – not multiple times.

12. After all the signatures have been obtained and the contract is complete, please convert the contract and all other
supporting documentation to be submitted for approval into a PDF file. Peer Review Reports should be
submitted in a separate PDF file.  These documents should be submitted using the most current submission
process which can be obtained at the NC Treasurer’s web site – https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Audit-
Forms-and-Resources.aspx.

13. NEW: If an audit is unable to be completed by the due date, an Amended Contract should be completed and
signed by the unit and auditor, using the new “Amended LGC-205” form (Rev. 2015).  The written explanation
for the delay is now included on the contract itself to complete, and must be signed by the original parties to the
contract.

Town of Montreat, NC

N/A

Packet Page 45



Packet Page 46



                                      General Fund

                                            Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

                                                                        For the Period Ended January 31, 2017  

FYE 2017 Previously Current FYE 2017 FYE 16 Comparison FYE 2017

Actual to 

Budget %

Statement 

Period Variance 1/31/16

Budgeted Reported Month YTD Actual YTD Actual  Remaining Budget 7

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes 953,900.00$          563,209.20$          240,149.16$          803,358.36$          612,033.61$            150,541.64$          

Other taxes and licenses 413,700.00$          160,135.23$          34,882.79$            195,018.02$          169,639.88$            218,681.98$          

Unrestricted intergovernmental 105,500.00$          6,165.05$              -$                      6,165.05$              28,551.63$              99,334.95$            

Permits and Fees 45,700.00$            17,593.44$            8,439.56$              26,033.00$            26,673.01$              19,667.00$            

Community Service Fee 45,000.00$            35,810.40$            -$                      35,810.40$            40,762.80$              9,189.60$              

Sales and Services 13,000.00$            5,171.65$              87.00$                   5,258.65$              6,348.67$                7,741.35$              

Investment earnings 2,200.00$              1,018.73$              238.75$                 1,257.48$              642.43$                   942.52$                 

Other revenues 4,000.00$              4,653.69$              5.00$                     4,658.69$              11,756.69$              (658.69)$                

Subtotal - Normal Operating 1,583,000.00$       793,757.39$          283,802.26$          1,077,559.65$       896,408.72$            505,440.35$          68.07% 58.33% 9.74% 1.22%

Restricted intergovernmental 173,200.00$         20,458.70$           20,458.70$           40,917.40$           156,087.96$            132,282.60$         

Contributions - Landcare -$                      2,000.00$             -$                      2,000.00$             14,100.00$              (2,000.00)$            

Contributions - Open Space -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                      

Total Revenues 1,756,200.00         816,216.09            304,260.96            1,120,477.05         1,066,596.68$         635,722.95            63.80% 58.33% 5.47% -11.04%

Expenditures:

Governing Body 85,500.00$            20,481.10$            90.84$                   20,571.94$            58,130.35$              64,928.06$            24.06% 58.33% 34.27% 2.81%

Administration 299,500.00$          166,516.21$          22,957.29$            189,473.50$          151,605.70$            110,026.50$          63.26% 58.33% -4.93% 4.72%

Public Buildings 133,200.00$          49,473.21$            591.08$                 50,064.29$            36,729.01$              83,135.71$            37.59% 58.33% 20.75% 32.09%

Police 369,000.00$          201,720.53$          25,670.76$            227,391.29$          230,261.11$            141,608.71$          61.62% 58.33% -3.29% -2.43%

Building & Zoning 84,200.00$            40,400.95$            5,814.05$              46,215.00$            44,560.11$              37,985.00$            54.89% 58.33% 3.45% 4.12%

Public Works 80,400.00$            39,193.05$            6,006.07$              45,199.12$            43,335.16$              35,200.88$            56.22% 58.33% 2.12% 8.00%

Streets 695,000.00$          111,584.89$          18,862.12$            130,447.01$          172,743.98$            564,552.99$          18.77% 58.33% 39.56% 44.75%

Powell Bill -$                       -$                      4,539.55$                -$                       0.00% 58.33% 0.00% 50.23%

Sanitation 114,200.00$          49,517.55$            7,669.22$              57,186.77$            56,635.88$              57,013.23$            50.08% 58.33% 8.26% 8.48%

Env/Cons/Rec 18,000.00$            6,070.83$              77.04$                   6,147.87$              9,302.97$                11,852.13$            34.15% 58.33% 24.18% 25.69%

Total expenditures 1,879,000.00         684,958.32$          87,738.47$            772,696.79$          807,843.82$            1,106,303.21$       41.12% 58.33% 17.21% 26.58%

Revenues over expenditures (122,800.00)           131,257.77$          216,522.49$          347,780.26$          258,752.86$            (470,580.26)$         

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer to/from Water Fund -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Fund Balance Appropriated: 122,800.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        122,800.00$          

Total other financing sources (uses) 122,800.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        122,800.00$          

Revenues and other sources over

  expenditures and other uses -$                       131,257.77$          216,522.49$          347,780.26$          258,752.86$            (347,780.26)$         

Expenditure Recap:

Salaries & Benefits 926,700.00$          497,879.13$          68,264.77$            566,143.90$          535,921.86$            360,556.10$          

Other Operating 399,800.00$          166,945.08$          18,340.69$            185,285.77$          207,923.63$            214,514.23$          

CIP/Grant Projects 552,500.00$         20,112.22$            1,154.90$              21,267.12$            63,998.33$              531,232.88$         

Total Expenditures 1,879,000.00$       684,936.43$          87,760.36$            772,696.79$          807,843.82$            1,106,303.21$       

Packet Page 47



                                      Water Fund

                                            Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

                                                                        For the Period Ended January 31, 2017  
                                                                        

FYE 2016 Previously Current FYE 2016 FYE 15 Comparison FYE 2016

Actual to 

Budget 

Percent

Statement 

Period Variance 1/31/16

Budgeted Reported Month YTD Actual YTD Actual  Remaining Budget 7

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes -$                      -$                       

Other taxes and licenses 18,343.62$            9,013.93$              27,357.55$            70,298.71$              (27,357.55)$           

MRA Comm Svc Fee -$                       -$                      -$                       

Permits and Fees -$                      -$                       

Sales and Services 308,500.00$          156,167.11$          21,519.03$            177,686.14$          176,284.82$            130,813.86$          

Investment earnings 500.00$                 118.62$                 20.73$                   139.35$                 53.06$                     360.65$                 

Other revenues 27,500.00$            7,707.57$              433.89$                 8,141.46$              21,198.33$              19,358.54$            

Subtotal - Normal Operating 336,500.00$          182,336.92$          30,987.58$            213,324.50$          267,834.92$            123,175.50$          

Restricted intergovernmental -$                      -$                      

Total revenues 336,500.00$          182,336.92$          30,987.58$            213,324.50$          267,834.92$            123,175.50$          63.40% 58.33% 5.06% 23.57%

Expenditures:

Water Department 336,500.00$          87,369.22$            7,409.35$              94,778.57$            78,705.59$              241,721.43$          28.17% 58.33% 30.17% 34.26%

Total expenditures 336,500.00$          87,369.22$            7,409.35$              94,778.57$            78,705.59$              241,721.43$          28.17% 58.33% 30.17% 34.26%

Revenues over expenditures -$                       94,967.70$            23,578.23$            118,545.93$          189,129.33$            (118,545.93)$         

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers to/from General Fund -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Fund Balance Appropriated: -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Total other financing sources (uses) -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Revenues and other sources over

  expenditures and other uses -$                       94,967.70$            23,578.23$            118,545.93$          189,129.33$            (118,545.93)$         

Expenditure Recap:

Salaries & Benefits -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Other Operating 279,500.00$          68,267.63$            5,539.35$              73,806.98$            78,705.59$              205,693.02$          

CIP/Grant Projects 57,000.00$           19,101.59$           1,870.00$             20,971.59$           -$                        36,028.41$           

Total Expenditures 336,500.00$          87,369.22$            7,409.35$              94,778.57$            78,705.59$              241,721.43$          

Packet Page 48



Packet Page 49



Packet Page 50



Packet Page 51



Packet Page 52



Packet Page 53



Packet Page 54



Packet Page 55



Packet Page 56



Packet Page 57



Packet Page 58



Packet Page 59



Packet Page 60



Packet Page 61



Town of Montreat Cash & Investments Report As of 3

Institution Type Maturity Date Balance Central General Water Int. Rate Int for mo

Avl Sav Bank Checking x2519 182,729.91$       182,729.91$   0.00% -$                  

Avl Sav Bank Cent'l Dep x 6863 4,369.18$           4,369.18$       0.00% -$                  

Avl Sav Bank Savings - Powell Bill 3572 190,768.93$       190,768.93$     0.10% 16.20$             

Avl Sav Bank Savings - Water Res. 7727 58,177.93$         58,177.93$       0.10% 4.94$                

Avl Sav Bank MMkt Acct xxx1204 1,740,951.84$    1,740,951.84$  0.13% 182.00$           

Avl Sav Bank Subtotal 2,176,997.79$    

BB&T MMkt Act - General Fund 450,238.44$       450,238.44$     0.10% 38.24$             

BB&T MMkt Act - Water Fund 157,563.76$       157,563.76$    0.10% 13.38$             

BB&T Subtotal 607,802.20$       

NCCMT Investment - General Fund 6,450.91$           6,450.91$          0.43% 2.31$                

NCCMT Investment - Water Fund 6,736.94$           6,736.94$         0.43% 2.41$                

NCCMT Subtotal 13,187.85$         

All Accts Subtotal 2,797,987.84$    187,099.09$   2,388,410.12$  222,478.63$    0.11% 259.48$           

All Accts Fiscal Year to Date 2,412,286.21$    0.09% 1,335.86$        

(average) (average) (cumulative)

Avl Sav Bank CD, 1yr x6827 Empl Benf 11/24/2017 54,525.10$         54,525.10$       0.20%

Avl Sav Bank CD x5119 11/12/2017 10,362.94$         10,362.94$       0.20%

CDs Subtotal 64,888.04$         0.20% -$                  

All Accts + CDs Total 2,862,875.88$    0.11% 259.48$           

All Accts + CDs Fiscal Year to Date 2,477,127.56$    0.10% 1,396.84$        

(average) (average)  

(Note: updated figures for CDs to be posted in December)

January 31, 2017

Packet Page 62



 
TOWN OF MONTREAT 

 

P. O. Box 423 
Montreat, NC 28757 

Tel: (828)669-8002   Fax: (828)669-3810 
www.townofmontreat.org 

 
 

Oath of Office 
 

Do you Alex Carmichael

Do you, further solemnly and sincerely affirm that you will be faithful 
and bear true allegiance to the State of North Carolina, and to the 
Constitutional powers and authorities which are or may be established for 
the government thereof; and that you will endeavor to support, maintain 
and defend the Constitution of the said State, not inconsistent with the 
Constitution of the United States to the best of your knowledge and ability, 
so help you, God. 

, solemnly affirm that you will support the 
Constitution of the United States;  so help you, God. 

Do you, Alex Carmichael, further affirm that you will well and truly 
execute the duties of the office of Town Administrator

 

 according to the 
best of your skill and ability, according to law; so help you, God. 

       
      _______________________ 
                  Alex Carmichael 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 9th day of March, 2017. 
 
 
       _______________________ 
        Angie Murphy – Town Clerk 

Packet Page 63

http://www.townofmontreat.org/�


TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  March 2, 2017 
 
 
SUBJECT:
 

  Purchase of 2017 Ford Explorer Police Vehicle 

 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 

Agenda Location: New Business 
Item Number: D 
Department:  Police 
Contact:  Chief Jack Staggs 
Presenter:  Chief Jack Staggs 
 

BRIEF SUMMARY:  The Police Department was granted the approval to purchase a 
police vehicle in the 2016-2017 budget. Of the four bids, Asheville Ford seems the most 
promising.  The last vehicle purchased was a base model that necessitated features and 
labor from a secondary source.  This added additional cost, as well as lost time and 
shortcomings of performance. The current venture should see significant upgrades for 
minimal cost.   

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:

 

  To approve the 
purchase of a 2017 Ford Explorer from Asheville Ford in the amount of $34,087. 

FUNDING SOURCE:
 

  approved Police budget for 2016-2017 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

  Vehicle purchase bid summary sheet 

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:   

Packet Page 64



TOWN OF MONTEAT 
 

 
Vehicle Purchase Bid Summary Sheet 

 

Equipment Bid: 2017 Ford Police SUV Contact Person:   Chief Jack Staggs 
 

Department:   Police Advertisement Date(s):   01/10/2017 
 

Bid Opening Date and Time:  01/10/2017 
Verification of Advertising  
Contained in File:    Yes             No 

 
 

 
Company 

 
Bid 

 
Vehicle Model 

 
Comments 

 
Capital Ford Raleigh 

 
$29,084.00 

 
2017 Ford Police SUV 

 
Base model*     

Ken Wilson Ford $28,279.00 2017 Ford Police SUV Base model*       
Asheville Ford $34,087.00 2017 Ford Police SUV Fully equipped 
 
Gerald Jones Ford 

 
$34,320.14 

 
2017 Ford Police SUV 

 
Fully equipped     

 
   

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
*Base models would require further purchasing of 
emergency equipment and detailing.  This was done 
through Kimball Communications on a previous Ford 
SUV for $4200, and was lacking current needed 
features.  An estimate of up-fitting through other 
companies suggests pricing in excess of $5000. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

                                                                     

Packet Page 65



TOWN OF MONTREAT 
FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 

BUDGET AMENDMENT #3 
 
 

J:\BOC\Packets\2017\March Packet\FY_2016-2017_Budget_Amendment_3.docx 

Be it ordained by the Town of Montreat Board of Commissioners that the following 
amendment be made to the Budget Ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. 
 
Department(s): Police/Streets 
 
Purpose: To amend the Police Budget to fund a vehicle purchase through the 

reallocation from the Streets capital expense budget. 
 
 
Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 
Line Item Account 

Number 
Debit 

Change 
Credit 

Change 
Amended 

Budget 
Police – Capital Exp 10-10-5100-730 $34100  $34,100 
Streets – Capital Exp 10-20-5600-730  $48,000 $354,400 

 
Section 2.  I certify that the accounting records provide for this budget amendment, and that 
the revenue source(s) are available: 
 
   

Finance Officer  Date 
 
Section 3.  Copies of this amendment shall be delivered to the Budget/Finance Officer and 
Town Auditor for their direction. 

 
Adopted this 9th

 
 day of March 2017. 

Recorded and filed: 
 
   

Budget Officer/Town Administrator  Date 
 
 

Town Clerk  Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet Page 66



 
Town of Montreat 
P.O. Box 423, Montreat, North Carolina 28757 
Phone:  (828) 669-8002 • Fax:  (828) 669-3810 

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:              TOWN ADMINISTRATOR   

FROM:        PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR   

SUBJECT:  DISPOSITION OF ASSETS IN PUBLIC WORKS 

DATE:         
 

FEBRUARY 2017  

1985 Ford F-700 Dump Truck:        
As is, needs brake work  
$1000.00 Minimum bid 
 
1994 F-250 Pickup Truck:     NOT OPERATIONAL 
As is, will not crank 
$500.00 Minimum bid 
 
 
2008 GEM Electric Truck:   NOT OPERATIONAL 
As is, needs batteries and charger replaced 
$             Minimum bid 
 
 
1960s Leaf Vacuum with Ford Industrial Engine 
As is, needs battery 
$1000.00 
 
 
 
Military surplus generator and trailer   NOT OPERATIONAL 
As is, will not crank 
$100.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Packet Page 67



Packet Page 68



Packet Page 69



Packet Page 70



Packet Page 71



Packet Page 72



Packet Page 73



Packet Page 74



Packet Page 75



Packet Page 76



Packet Page 77



Packet Page 78



Packet Page 79



Packet Page 80



Packet Page 81



Packet Page 82



Packet Page 83



Packet Page 84



Packet Page 85



Packet Page 86



Packet Page 87



Packet Page 88



Packet Page 89



Packet Page 90



Packet Page 91



Packet Page 92



Packet Page 93



Packet Page 94



Packet Page 95



Packet Page 96



Packet Page 97



Packet Page 98



Packet Page 99



Packet Page 100



Packet Page 101



Packet Page 102



Packet Page 103



Packet Page 104



  
Town of Montreat 

P.O. Box 423, Montreat, North Carolina 28757 
Phone:  (828) 669-8002 • Fax:  (828) 669-3810 

www.townofmontreat.org 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Texas Bridge Inspection Summary 
 

Upgrades To Convert To Pedestrian Bridge 
 

• Bridge rails do not meet Pedestrian Bridge Standards and will need to be replaced. 
• Need to install either permanent or removable bollards at both approaches. 
• Remove and replace existing asphalt wearing surface to prevent the tripping hazard 

to pedestrians.  
 
Public Works can make all of these upgrades, the asphalt resurfacing timing will be 
dependent on weather and the opening of the asphalt plants usually in April. When the old 
surface is removed and depending on the flooring a decision will need to be made weather 
to narrow the 19 foot down to 12 foot wide. This would reduce the number of bollards, and 
the amount of asphalt needed and should reduce future maintenance costs. 
 
 

Recommendations for Maintenance Repairs 
 

• Partial steel beam cleaning and painting 
• Isolated decayed areas throughout the timber bulkhead, wing walls, and soldier 

piles will need to be replaced 
• The timber deck has isolated decayed areas that need to be replaced. ( This can be 

done by public works from above when asphalt surface is replaced) 
 
This work (with the exception of timber deck) will take place inside the floodway area and 
will require permitting and need engineering approval. Staff recommends hiring a local 
engineering firm to engineer and bid out this work. These repairs are not immediate to 
convert the bridge to pedestrian use but are needed to extend the life of the bridge from 
ten years to twenty or more. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Packet Page 105



Packet Page 106



Packet Page 107


	DRAFT_03022017_BOC_Agenda_PublicForum
	DRAFT_03022017_BOC_AgendaFinal
	DRAFT_01262017_BOC_Special_Workshop_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	UAgenda Approval
	Commissioner Standaert requested that a Public Comment period be added to the agenda.  It was decided that the Public Comment period would come before the Council began their discussion.  Commissioner Vinson moved to adopt the agenda as amended.  Mayo...
	UPublic Comment
	Martha Campbell of 149 Maryland Place, reflected on the need in the Swannanoa Valley for affordable housing and she referenced a recent article in the Black Mountain News in which a homeless lady and her niece were being provided a tiny house in which...
	Grace Nichols of 527 Suwannee Drive, stated that she was in attendance to listen and support the Council.
	UTown Council Discussion
	Mayor Helms prefaced the meeting by saying that the first step, in his opinion, was to decide whether the Council wanted to sell the property, keep the property or donate the property.  He stated there were many options that could be reviewed.  Commis...
	UAdjournment

	DRAFT_02022017_BOC_Agenda_PublicForum_Meeting_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche

	DRAFT_02022017_BOC_TC_Meeting_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	UAgenda Approval
	Commissioner Standaert felt that this meeting should be addressed as an agenda meeting.  Mayor Helms stated that it had been advertised as a regular meeting and that is how the Council would proceed.  Mayor Helms further stated that in March the Board...
	UMayor’s Communications
	Mayor Helms had no communications this evening.
	UConsent Agenda Review
	UTown Administrator’s Communications
	UPolice Chief:U  Chief Staggs reviewed and presented the January 2016 monthly departmental activity report.  Chief Staggs thanked Public Work Crews for their hard work with snow removal and stated that there were no accidents or stranded motorist call...
	UPublic Works Director:U  Public Works Director Steve Freeman announced that crews have started their annual fire hydrant inspection and flushing systems.  They have completed about 1/3 of the hydrants which equates to about 30 out of 97 hydrants in T...
	UFinance Officer:U  Mr. Stackhouse presented and reviewed the following monthly reports:
	 December 2016 Financial Summary Report;
	 Final December 2016 Detailed Financial Statement;
	 December 31, 2016 Cash and Investment Earnings Report;
	 Preliminary January 2016 Detailed Financial Statements
	UBuilding Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer:U  Mr. Currie presented and reviewed his January 2016 zoning and inspections activity report.  Mr. Currie did 29 fire inspections and 10 fire re-inspections during the month.  There was a Board of Adjustmen...
	UPublic CommentsU
	Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications.
	Mrs. Martha Campbell of 149 Maryland Place, looked up the definition of inclusive and found that it means “treating all groups or all members of a group equally and without exception” and she supports adding this phrase to the Town of Montreat’s missi...
	UOld Business
	There is no Old Business to discuss.
	UNew Business
	UUpcoming Meeting Dates
	Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:
	UClosed Session
	Commissioner Vinson moved to enter into Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina General Statute §143-318.11(6) for discussion of a personnel matter.  Commissioner Otto seconded and the motion carried 4/0.
	Upon a motion by Commissioner Vinson and a second by Mayor Pro Tem Fouche with the motion carrying 4/0, the Board returned to Open Session.  Commissioner Vinson moved to hire Mr. Alex Carmichael as the Town of Montreat’s new Town Administrator with an...
	UAdjournment

	2017_BOC_Meeting_Calendar_ADOPTED_2212017
	ASBSignatureCards (2)
	Board Action Request - BBT Accts - 9Mar2017
	UAGENDA INFORMATIONU:
	Contact:  Stefan Stackhouse

	201701 BudgettoActual
	January 17 final detail
	cash invest rpt 201701
	CarmichaelTAdminOath
	Board Action Request for 2017 FORD SUV (2)
	USUBJECT:U  Purchase of 2017 Ford Explorer Police Vehicle
	UAGENDA INFORMATION:
	Contact:  Chief Jack Staggs

	Ford 2017 Police SUV Vehicle Bids 01292017
	FY_2016-2017_Budget_Amendment_3
	2017 disposition
	Town of Montreat

	TexasBridgeInspection
	Pedestrian Bridge Conversion Memo
	BridgeMeetinginRaleigh (2)
	Town of Montreat - 2017 Audit Contract
	Town of Montreat - 2017 Yellow Book Engagement Letter

	Button1: 


